


Agenda - Planning Commission
January 9, 2024

Page 2

Set public hearing date of January 23, 2024, for: Case#2-24 —Rezoning of 6.11 acres
of land from I-1 Industrial to Conditional C-2 Commercial Located at 5080, 5090, 5140
Broadmoor Ave SE and 4581 — 52" Street SE

Set public hearing date of February 13, 2024, for: Case#3-24 — Breton Ravines RPUD
— Rezoning and Preliminary PUD Approval for a Residential Planned Unit Development
Located at 2720 527 Street, 2854 52! Street and 5491 Wing Avenue SE; Case#4-24
Midwest United FC Practice Facility — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a
Small Group Fitness and Rehabilitation Training Facility Located at 3445 — 36' Street

Other Business

1. Election of Officers - (Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary)

2. Commissioners’ Comments
3, Staff’s Comments
Adjournment

*Public Hearing Format:

1. Staff Presentation — Introduction of project, Staff Report and Recommendation
Introduction of project representative

2. Project Presentation — By project representative

3. Open Public Hearing (please state name, address and speak at podium. Comments are limited to five
minutes per speaker; exceptions may be granted by the chair for representative speakers and
applicants.)

4. Close Public Hearing

5. Commission Discussion — Requests for clarification to project representative, public or staff
6. Commission decision — Options

a. postpone decision - table to date certain

b. reject proposal

c. accept proposal

d.

accept proposal with conditions.



PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULLAR MEETING
OF THE KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
DECEMBER 12,2023, 7:00 P.M.
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

Vice- Chair Holtrop called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Holtrop.

Roll Call:

Members Present: Bill Benoit, Dan Holtrop, Sandra Jones, Ed Kape, Alex Porter, Darius
Quinn, Doug VanderMeer, Sarah Weir

Members Absent: Ray Poyner (with notification)

Others Present: Economic Development Planner Iisa Golder, Planning Assistant
Monique Collier, the applicants and about 10 residents.

Motion by Kape, supported by Benoit, to excuse Poyner from the meeting.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
- Poyner absent -

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
There was no conflict of interest statement expressed.
Approval of the Minutes and Findings of Fact

Motion by Commissioner Benoit, supported by Commissioner Porter, to approve
the Minutes of November 28, 2023.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
- Poyner absent -
Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Commissioner Quinn, supported by Commissioner Kape, to approve the
agenda for the December 12, 2023 meeting,

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
- Poyner absent -

Acknowledge visitors wishing to speak to non-agenda items.

There were no public comments.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 2
H.

Old Business
There was no Old Business.
Public Hearing

Case#29-23 — GRR Ancillary — Rezoning of 10.57 acres of land from I-1 Industrial to C-
PUD Commercial Planned Unit Development and Preliminary Site Plan Review located
at the NW corner of 36™ Street and Patterson Avenue

Golder stated the request is a commercial development rezoning and a CPUD site plan of
10.4 acres at the NW corner of Patterson and 36™ Street. She stated currently it is zoned
IPUD, with one parcel that is currently zoned single family residential. The surrounding
zoning to the north is R1-C, to the south is I-1, to the east in Cascade Township it is
industrial, and to the west is IPUD, which is the current zoning of the property.

Golder stated in 2022 we went through a process to amend our Master Plan for the 10.4
acres from industrial to commercial and that was approved. She stated one of the
stipulations of the commercial use is that it had to be a CPUD.

Golder stated what is being proposed on the site is:
o Hotel with 135 rooms on 3.26 acres
e Child care center on .95 acres
e 9,500 future commercial/retail center on 1.07 acres
e 8,000 square foot retail and 3,000 square foot bank on 2.04 acres
¢ 4,000 square foot restaurant with drive-through on 1.05 acres

e 6,000 square foot gas station/convenience store and diesel fuel station on 2.16
acres

Golder stated at the last meeting we tabled because there are a number of things that the
ordinance requires that the applicant didn’t have on the site plan. Golder stated we have
since received some additional information.

Golder stated that we still don’t know how the Kent County Road Commission (KCRC)
feels about two driveways on Patterson Avenue. She stated in the MDOT guidelines it
states that when the posted speed limit is 50 miles per hour, has to be at least 460 feet
away from a signalized intersection. She stated the proposed driveway is not 460 feet
away.

Golder stated there are standards for how close two unsignalized commercial driveways
should be from each other at 55 miles per hour. She stated that they should be 455+ feet,
and this is about 240 feet. She stated from a spacing standpoint it is not appropriate and
that is why she hesitated about whether to allow the two driveways. She stated she wants
the KCRC opinion on the matter and as of right now we do not have that.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12,2023

Page 3

Golder stated that there was discussion about having that southern driveway be right-in

right-out only. She stated she is waiting on more traffic information from the KCRC who
has jurisdiction on Patterson Avenue.

Golder stated the applicant provided additional information on how they felt they meet
the site design standards regarding landscaping. She stated the applicant said they will
decide on the minor plantings later. Golder stated that is okay, however, the ordinance
also requires the applicant to state how they will diminish the appearance of parking lots
from the street. She stated the applicant did not provide a graphic on how that might look.
She stated we need more information on the height of the berm.

Golder stated that a City entryway/landmark is required near the intersection of two
arterial streets. The type and conceptual design of the landmark has to be determined as is
part of the preliminary PUD plan and the timing of installation described in the PUD
agreement. She stated the site plan does show that there is entryway signage, but we
don’t really know about the type, therefore, we need more information.

Golder stated there is a section that deals with the pedestrian gathering and seating. She
stated there is one pedestrian area by the diesel gas station. She stated we need to know
if there is more. She stated there is really no pedestrian-oriented features on the site.

Golder stated that Patterson Avenue is mentioned in our non-motorized plan. There is
supposed to be a 10-foot non-motorized path along Patterson Avenue. Right now, there is
a 5 foot sidewalk it would have to be supplemented with another 5 feet of pavement in
order to comply with the non-motorized plan.

Goder stated regarding sign types and materials, the ordinance requires it to be consistent
with the overall architecture of the PUD. It says that when you are looking at what kind
of sign is allowed, you go back to the zoning district that the type of use. She stated the
applicant shows where there is going to be some signage. Each lot can have its own sign,
but the applicant is asking for signage for an industrial use to the west. The PUD does
not allow a waiver to advertise offsite. She stated that would be a use variance which is
not allowed under our ordinance.

Golder stated the development meets the 30% open space requirement, but also shows an

additional 50 extra parking spaces. That could be additional open space or deferred
parking.

Golder stated regarding architectural guidelines staff received an image and would like to
have discussion with the planning commission to see if that is going to be adequate. She
stated when the final plans come in, is the image going to be enough to go on for the
architectural style of the site.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 4

Golder stated there is a section within the PUD requirements that discusses the entryway
to the City and that buildings have to face that entryway. She stated staff has asked them
to flip the pumps and station but that has not been completed.

Golder stated with respect to waivers the applicant made a list of waiver types. She stated
they added waivers for special land uses, that can’t be waived.

Golder stated there are a couple of site plan notes regarding curb cuts and the final
lighting plan and that the KCRC has not reviewed the revised traffic memo yet.

Jim Morgan, RIM Design, Elliott Muller, Doug Stalsonburg, Chris Zull were present.

Morgan stated they would prefer the commissioners not table and approve with
conditions, but if tabling is their preference they would be fine with that and will continue
to provide more details.

Morgan stated if you look at site plan approval section of the ordinance there is a list of
items required for preliminary and a list of items required for final approval. Morgan
stated a number of things that staff is asking for is listed as part of the final site plan
approval. He stated they feel like they have complied with the ordinance at this point.

Morgan stated access is very important and a major part of this project. He stated a lot of
the layout that has been presented is based on the two curb cuts on Patterson. He stated
18 months ago they met with the Tim Haagsma from the County and have a letter from
him saying he will approve the curb cuts with full access.

Chris Zull, Traffic Engineer with Progressive AE was present. He provided more insight
on the traffic study that was submitted. He stated staff did share some of the MDOT
guidance around driveways. He stated many roadways that MDOT owns do not the
driveway spacing that they recommend. He gave an example of 28" Street where there
are a lot of curb cuts that are nowhere near 450 feet apart.

Zull stated the traffic impact study shows that by using two different methodologies they
have a south bound queue that exceeds the length of where the proposed driveway curb
cut is at approximately 430 feet north of 36™ Street. He stated one of the reasons that this
driveway location is proposed here goes back to the conversation with Tim Haagmas He
stated it is common to locate driveways across from one another and there is a driveway
existing on the east side of Patterson Avenue at approximately 430 feet. South bound
queue for through traffic is approximately 505 feet as detailed in the traffic study, 417
feet using the other methodology. He stated that the back up in which the queue blocks
left turns in only occurs maybe 5% of the time. Discussion ensued. He stated the
conversations continues with Tim Haagsma and they have provided some additional
information for his review. He has not yet been able to review the additional information
yet, but he will have some time to discuss it further.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 5

Zull stated in consideration of a right-in, right-out driveway, they are often effective
when we have the appropriate level of traffic on the street. However, there are plenty of
opportunities during the off peak times for people to make lefts out. Even though the
islands are clearly dedicating a right-in, right-out people will take lefts in. He stated it
may be more concerning .

Zull stated there were some other issues about the fueling stations for the diesel fuel.
Golder stated she hasn’t received anything on that but if he would like to cover we can
get the information out in the next packet. Zull stated the site plan currently includes the
vehicle fueling stations and then two additional pumps that are diesel only. Zull stated it
is believed that all of the passenger vehicle fueling stations will also include the diesel
option. The separate diesel only fueling stations are intended only for larger freight
trucks. The expectation of use especially during the morning or evening peak hours is
often when the large vehicles aren’t using the network because it is the busiest times of
the day. The diesel fueling at any of the two fueling stations is expected to be very low.

Golder noted that at fuel station Speedway, the trucks would park in the middle of 52™
Street and get out to get food. She stated if there is going to be diesel on this site then she
thinks we need to look at where they are going to go. There must be places for them to
park so they can use the facilities there.

Morgan stated they are not providing a place to park at the diesel fueling area. He stated
they do not want this to become a truck stop. He wants them to fuel up and leave. He
stated if you provide parking then it will become a truck stop

Morgan stated there is the December 5 report raise a number of issues that were brought
up at the work session. He stated they are listening to the Planning Department and the
Planning Commission and responding as best they can. He stated the one common theme
for all of the items is the fact that the PUD is creating something different than if this was
conventional zoning.

Morgan stated they are providing the berm. He stated staff was concerned about the
height and believes the ordnance calls for 3 feet and that would be continuous it would be
meandering so it will look natural and there will also be shrubs. He stated he did go to the
ordinance and calculate the number of plants. He stated along Patterson they are required
to provide 35 trees and 174 shrubs. It will be well landscaped. He stated 36 Street will
have an additional 15 trees and 77 shrubs. He stated they will have a pretty good buffer
for the parking lots. Discussion ensued.

Morgan said regarding pedestrian gathering and seating areas, they envision some of
those are going to be associated with the actual buildings so they aren’t showing those yet
because they don’t have building footprint designed yet. They don’t have tenants yet that
would be something provided during final site plan review.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 6

Morgan stated regarding the pedestrian scale environment, they are right now providing
almost a mile of sidewalks. He stated the landscaping will help those sidewalks become
pedestrian scale. Once they add the landscaping it will feel a lot more pedestrian scale.

Morgan stated there was mention of lacking a north south sidewalk that would connect
36™ Street all the way to the north. They chose not to put one along the north south drive
but there are actually two sidewalks on either side that start at the public sidewalk along
36'™ Street going north all the way to the end. They have sidewalk, just not at the drive.
They think it is better to have the sidewalk associated with the building fronts.

Morgan stated the non-motorized trail that was mentioned they are proposing to provide a
5 foot easement for that. There wasn’t any mention of paying for it because his
experience with trails, they are paid for with grants. He stated to say they are going to pay
for it at this point is premature.

Morgan stated they are fine with the signage. However, they do have the desire to put a
sign for their industrial development. They have 20 acres the north driveway will become
a major entrance. He stated they have not subdivided the 30 acres yet.

Morgan stated they do comply with the 30% open space however staff mentioned the 50
extra parking spaces. He stated they purposely went heavy on the parking for a couple of
reason. He stated from his experience, when you get into final site plan review you end
up losing parking spaces. He stated he doesn’t show any barrier free parking yet. He
stated in the landscape ordinance there is a requirements for a certain number of trees
within the parking lots. He stated you will lose parking counts.

Morgan stated regarding justifying the width of the proposed curb cuts they can make
them whatever the City wants. Right now, they are KCRC standards there are two 12 foot
lanes, plus a 16 foot lane inbound and that is standard. If they City wants something
different, they can change the width.

Morgan stated their proposal is consistent with the City’s Master Plan. They have had
numerous meetings and their plans reflect the meetings that they have had.

Holtrop opened the public hearing,

Christina Holwerda, 4289 36™ Street was present. She stated a lot of them have lived
there for a long time and as the commission makes their decisions to keep them in mind.
They know it was planned for future industrial. The fuel pumps facing 36 street she is
hoping they can stick with this plan if they have to have a gas station. She doesn’t really
like the idea of being in between several gas stations. She appreciates seeing the daycare
and the banks. She stated as they are making these plans, please consider to keep the
residents involved as they have.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12,2023

Page 7

Laura Zotco, 1348 Kelsey Street NE. She is the daughter of the homeowner adjacent to
the property was present. She echoed the previous comments. She stated the realtor has
been good to work with. She stated she thinks this could be a miserable experience
because it is not pleasant to have things closing around you.

Motion by Kape, supported by Jones to table the public hearing to the January 9,
2024 meeting.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

- Poyner absent —

Kape questioned the concern regarding the pumps on the corner. Golder stated because of
the way the ordinance is written this would be a waiver if they are not inclined to flip the
pumps. She stated it is a prominent corner. Rather than coming into the City and seeing
the pumps there, she would like to see the building with the pumps behind.

Kape questioned their signage. Golder stated if you go to what the commercial

regulations are for signage it is based on the front foot along the public street. Discussion
ensued. '

Kape questioned if they were not going to bring the sidewalks up to 36™ Street to
Patterson. Golder stated along Patterson we are looking for a 10 foot non-motorized trail
and right now there is a 5 foot sidewalk there. Golder stated the solution would be
another 5 feet of sidewalk adjacent for a total of 10 feet and typically that is on the

developer to do. Morgan stated on the plan they will call out a 5-foot easement for that
future trail.

Porter questioned where is the 5 foot and the 5 foot extra. Morgan stated there is a 5 foot
sidewalk on the east side of the ROW and then 5 feet to the west of ROW line to give you
a total of 10 feet which would give you room for that 10 foot trail. Discussion ensued..
Golder asked when will the sidewalk ever go in. We will have to decide the timing of the
sidewalk installation. We will have to work within the development agreement.

Porter questioned the architectural style. Morgan stated this is very conceptual, they are
showing that they are committed to using high quality materials and the ordinance is
pretty clear about percentages.

Porter stated going north they have the two entrances proposed. Is the 775.99 feet the
entire length of the lot or the distance to the first drive. Morgan stated that is the full
ROW from north to south. Porter questioned what is the distance to that first drive. Zull
stated the center of the first drive is approximately 430 feet and the drive north of that is
approximately 240 feet.

Golder stated the purpose of PUD’s we can control access our ordinance states this.
Discussion ensued.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 8

Porter stated he would be interested in what the KCRC has to say. Morgan stated there
are two things happening to the north that are going to help protect future curb cuts:
There is a Consumers Energy easement and beyond that is the City of Grand Rapids
water tower.

Morgan stated there was comment about flipping the pumps to the other side and
responding to the public comment. He stated the further the pumps are from the
residential the more they would appreciate it,

Benoit stated he wants to hear what the KCRC has to say. He stated flipping the C-Store
he doesn’t think it is going to make a big difference. He stated the diesel next to the
daycare the play area is on the other side, He stated this is an entrance into the City and
we have seen where modern gas stations are willing to move their building and willing to
move their pumps back especially on a corner, He would prefer to see that.

Jones concurred with Benoit as it relates to getting the report back from the KCRC and
also related to the convenience store and the pumps.

Quinn stated he isn’t sure how the diesel pump and the proposed gathering seating area is
going to work out. He stated it will be interesting to see how this is going to work in the
end. Quinn stated it looks like the proposed curb cuts are already in use. Golder stated
there are two existing buildings there. Those are going to be removed, they were separate
parcels. Quinn stated the curb cuts are there. Golder stated they are there, but the use is
changing from industrial to commercial use with different high volume users. Discussion
ensued.

VanderMeer stated there was discussion regarding preliminary and final approval. Golder
stated the commissioners are approving a preliminary approval and there is a list of things
in the ordinance requires on the plan. But you also have things to consider under the PUD
standards. Discussion ensued.

VanderMeer questioned why the berm is where it is and why wouldn’t they put it closer
to the road. Morgan stated ideally if you can put a sidewalk on the other side of the berm
it is nice. He stated what they have to work with is not practical. Golder stated she agrees.
Discussion ensued. VanderMeer stated his concern is also with truck parking.

Holtrop stated regarding architecture is the hotel ready to go. Elliott Muller stated they
are in discussion with Visser Brothers with the hotel. There are several gas stations that
have inquired but they don’t have anything to market at this point. Muller stated
regarding architecture, they don’t really know what to draw because restaurants can vary
drastically. That is one of the reasons they said they are going to meet or exceed code.

Holtrop questioned the sidewalk. Morgan stated they are connecting the sidewalk.
Morgan stated what staff mentioned was the sidewalk following the road and they have it
covered in two places.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
December 12, 2023

Page 9

Holtrop questioned where they are going to put the snow. Morgan stated they do keep
that in mind they try to avoid curbing. Morgan stated another thing they do is look at the
grading plan they want it to melt away from the parking lot and not on it.

Benoit stated he wants to make sure that we have it clear they said they are going to
provide the easement to the trail, but they understand that they are going to be responsible
for the installation of the extra 5 feet. Morgan stated they did not understand that. Benoit
stated or there can be some language in the development agreement that the individual
lots are going to be responsible for that portion of the sidewalk. Golder stated or they can
be reimbursed, but they don’t want to build it and have to tear it out because they are
putting in infrastructure.

Muller stated regarding phases they hope to start this spring. Their intent is to do all the
common space first and then rough grade all the units and then utilities to those specific
units. The sites that will be developed among the units first would likely be 1 and 6, but
all the infrastructure would be put in and ready to go, so that it is not an eyesore for years
to come.

Motion by Benoit, supported by Kape, to table to January 9, 2024.
- Motion Carried (8-0) —
- Poyner absent -

Work Session

There were no work sessions.

New Business

Motion by Benoit, supported by Quinn, to Set public hearing date of January 23,
2024, for: Case#1-24 — Storage Five Kentwood LL.C — Rezoning of 5.87 acres of land
from C-2 Commercial to Conditional I-1 located at 1800-1900 44" Street SE

- Motion Carried (8-0)-

- Poyner absent -
Other Business
1. Commissioners’ Comments
The commissioners wished everyone a Happy Holiday.

2. Staff’s Comments

Adjournment



Proposed Minutes

Planning Commission

December 12, 2023

Page 10
Motion by Commissioner Benoit, supported by Commissioner
adjourn the meeting.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
- Poyner absent -

Meeting adjourned at 8:25pm

Respectfully submitted,

Ed Kape, Secretary

to



1/3/2024

PROJECT:

APPLICATION:

REQUEST:

LOCATION

HEARING DATE:

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

GR Ancillary C-PUD

29-23

Rezoning of 10.57 acres of land from IPUD Industrial Planned
Unit Development to CPUD Commercial Planned Unit
Development and Preliminary Site Plan Review of a
Commercial PUD.

NW Corner of 36" Street and Patterson Avenue

December 12, 2023, and January 9, 2024

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend to the City Commission conditional approval of

CONDITIONS:

1.

the request for rezoning of 10.57 acres of land located at the
northwest corner of Patterson Avenue and 36" Street from I-
PUD Industrial Planned Unit Development to C-PUD
Commercial Planned Unit as described in Case No. 29-23, and
Preliminary Site Plan Review for the site plan dated January 2,
2024 for the GRR Ancillary CPUD as described in Case No.

29-23. Approval is conditioned on the following;:

The site shall be developed consistent with the representations made
within the PUD Qualifying Statement and Narrative dated January 2,
2024, with the following amendments:

¢ Remove references to freestanding diesel fueling station

Review and approval by staff and the Kentwood City Attorney of the
PUD Statement and Development Agreement.

. Approval of the preliminary site plan by the Kentwood City Engineer

and Kentwood Fire Marshal.
Removal of the freestanding diesel pumps on Parcel 6.

Applicant shall provide an easement to allow the eventual driveway
connection to 33" Street. The applicant shall pave the proposed



Planning Staff Recommendation
Case No. 29-23 GRR Ancillary PUD

Page 2

BASIS

10.

easement area to the north property line of the GRR Ancillary
development.

Applicant shall provide an easement along Patterson Avenue that is
adequate to achieve a 10’ total non-motorized pathway (the design of
which to be approved by the city) along the Patterson Avenue frontage
as depicted in the approved preliminary site plan and required by the
City’s Non-Motorized Plan. The trail shall extend to the north property
line and shall be constructed with the first phase of the development.

Additional sidewalk connections shall be provided within Parcels 1
and 4 to extend sidewalk along the north side of the proposed 8,000
square foot retail building and extending to the proposed hotel. ‘

. Review and approval by Kentwood city staff and the Kentwood Arts

Commission of the design and site plan for the city entranceway
landmark/sign.

Pole signs in the development are limited to 100 square feet.
Approval by the Planning and City Commissions of the proposed

waivers outlined in the PUD Qualifying Statement dated January 2,
2024,

. The proposed rezoning from Industrial Planned Unit Development to

Commercial Planned Unit Development is consistent with the Master
Plan. The Master Plan for this parcel was amended in 2022, allowing the
change to commercial use, with the condition that the area be developed as
a PUD.

The PUD Statement and Development Agreement address how the
development meets the requirements of the Master Plan and Zoning
Ordinance. The Development Agreement will tie the rezoning to this
specific project and to the representations made by the applicant as to the
nature of the development.

The review and approval of these documents will ensure that the site is
developed consistent with an approved plan and will give direction to the
applicant as the project develops.

Section 12.05¢ requires a landmark or entrance sign near the intersection
of two arterial streets or at an entrance point to the city. A conceptual
design and plan are required to be part of the preliminary PUD approval.
The applicant has shown a clear vision corner, some open space and a
representation of entryway signage. The detailed plans shall be approved
by staff and the Arts Commission, as necessary.



Planning Staff Recommendation
Case No. 29-23 GRR Ancillary PUD

Page 3

. The driveway connection to 33% Street will allow the proposed

development to potentially connect to the signalized intersection at 33
Street to the north. This is consistent with the requirements of Section
12.05 4 of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to traffic circulation,
operations and access.

. The applicant has proposed a freestanding diesel fueling station, intended

for large trucks and semis. A freestanding diesel fueling station is more
appropriate within an industrial area and is permitted in the Industrial zone
with Special Land Use approval. The applicant has stated that it was not
their intent to allow truck parking within the PUD; if diesel fueling is
allowed, truck parking will occur throughout the development.

. The applicant’s Qualifying Statement for the PUD provides two

architectural design concepts for the development. The applicant has
further submitted that whichever design is chosen, the architecture across
the PUD will be unifying, attractive, interesting and sustainable. Final
approval of each elevation and its consistency with the representations
made by the applicant will be determined by the Planning Commission in
its review of each final PUD plan.

. Many of the uses proposed (vehicle fuel stations, restaurants, day care, and

personal service establishments) are allowed under the current I-PUD
zoning. The proposed rezoning to Commercial PUD will allow some
additional uses (such as the hotel and retail establishments) that will be
subject to special land use and/or site plan review and approval.

. Freestanding signage in the commercial zone is limited to 100 square feet.

Section 12.05D makes allowance for waivers from the provisions of

Sections 12.02C, 12.02D and 12.05C. The applicant has requested a

waiver from four requirements of Section 12.05C; these must be approved
by the City Commission after recommendation by the Planning
Commission.

10. Discussion during the work session and public hearings.






























January 2, 2024

GRR ANCILLARY C-PUD MEMO

Following are a list of modifications and clarifications to our previous submittals for
C-PUD rezoning. All of this information has been added to Sheet C-103 dated
January 2, 2024.

1.

Access: Tim Hagsma (KCRC) has recommended the southerly driveway on
Patterson Avenue be restricted to a right-in, right-out only. A copy of Tim’s
letter to the City dated December 14, 2023 is attached and our Preliminary
Site Plan (sheet C-103) has been updated to reflect this recommendation. Full
access drive widths have been reduced from 40 feet to 39 feet per the KCRC's
standards.

Parcel 6: The proposed gas station has been reoriented with the building near
the intersection and the pumps on the west (back) side. The diesel pump
remains on the west side. The convenience store size and parking count has
been increased slightly.

Please know that our prospects for parcel six prefer the gas pumps visible to
the customer (east side of building) as shown on our December 5, 2023 Site
Plan. Equally important, so do the residential neighbors that spoke at the
December 12, 2023 public hearing. Therefore, we request that this option
remain open for further review during Final Site Plan when architectural
drawings will be prepared and presented for your consideration.

Architecture: Two architectural design concepts have been submitted; a
traditional design consisting of brick with stone trim and glass, and a
contemporary design with a combination of brick or decorative masonry, metal
panel and glass. As stated in our December 5 memo, the architectural design
will be unifying, attractive, interesting and sustainable and will provide an
overall cohesive component to the Planned Unit Development.

. Greenbelt: Additional detail has been added to the Greenbelt Cross-Section

including berm height (three feet), shape of berm (meandering), a note stating
the quantity of trees and shrubs will comply with the Landscape Ordinance
which will buffer the views of the parking areas.

Amenities: Site amenity details, including gathering areas, benches and bike
racks will be provided with Final Site Plans for each parcel per note number 6
on sheet C-103.

Page 1 of 2

1971 East Beltline NE, Suite 217 e Grand Rapids, Ml 49525 e P:616 336-6071 e F:616336-8991 e www.rjm-design.com



January 2, 2024

6. Sidewalks: Additional sidewalk connections have been added including
connections to the existing sidewalk on parcels 4 & 6, a connection to the
future Consumers Energy trail on parcel 1, and a possible connection to the
future industrial development on parcel 1.

7. Signs: A proposed 24 SF directional sign has been added in the NE corner of
parcel 4 for the future industrial tenant. The gateway sign will be constructed
during the development of parcel 6 and its design will be coordinated with the
architecture of building. All other proposed signs will comply with Chapters 8
and 16 of the Ordinance.

8. Clear Vision Corner: The note identifying the clear vision corner at the
intersection of 36" Street and Patterson Avenue has been revised to read;
“"MINIMUM 25'x25"' CLEAR VISION CORNER OR LARGER IF REQUIRED BY THE
KCRC".

9. Parking: A note has been added under the Parking Requirements Chart;
“Overall parking quantities will comply with the City Parking Ordinance.
Parking spaces in excess (if any) will be deferred and converted into Open
space”.

10. Waivers: Requested waivers from conventional zoning include:
a. Hotel building height at 54 feet.

b. Front yard building setback for Parcel 3 at 25’.
c. Some parking in front of buildings.

Page 2 of 2

1971 East Beltline NE, Suite 217 e Grand Rapids, Ml 49525 e P:616 336-6071 e F:616336-8991 e www.rjm-design.com












735.04"

-

Ph: (616) 336-6071
www.rjm-design.com

Land Planning e Landscape Architecture

RJM DESIGN

Proposed 4-Story — SAFE CROSSING OF DRIVES

= Hotel w/ 135 Rooms E @ |
L 21,000 SF (Footprint) = SO FX
} == I
| ! . PROPOSED RIGHT=IN, RIGHT—OUT
e — — ACCESS DRIVE A9 R ENDED
BY THE THE KCRG
;‘ [ | > 0 = ] I
rﬂ_‘w 13 =~ o
SETBACE | L I‘ ‘
= |
e TR 23,05 pores 5o o]
| =
] , ’ ) 2 o : :
m |

11 Zone
Light Industrial
20.05 Acres

~
BN
L
| I umjm
=ZH
g
I =
£4
' | R
R1-C Zone \ -
~ ©
Consumer Energy POSSIBLE FUTURE WALK 5 | 26
Easement CONNECTION TO_FUTURE “| _ PROPOSED RIGHT—TURN LANE \
CONSUMERS ENERGY TRAIL y
FUTURE ENTRANGE DRIVE AS RECOMMENDED BY THE PAE
TO INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY ] OCTOBER 2023 TRAFFIC IMPACT
CONDITIONED ON SECURING CREEK STUDY AND AS REQUIRED BY 7 ~ N
EGLE WETLAND PERMIT FOR LTTLE PLASTER POSSIBLE FUTURE DRIVE PROPOSED THE KCRC. §
STREAM CROSSING / CONNECTION TO NORTH SITE_LIGHT I | g
’ . 582 = >
1’185‘61 - - -‘ -l /T‘X}- -; . - - I 8§
- - -- - o= - - - - - - - - == == == - - == == = = = = = = - = = = - - I — 7”_77”%7”i”’-’%’” — ' r// \W p W =g
- - - o= [ - = - o L = = - - = = --T:-iif——ffk S SO S SO S e et renet - P— — N — — — — — e e e e e Y e e T T T T T T N V=4 \u oo
< - I————— = =5 — =
) POSSIBLE FUTURE SIDEWALK & B \PROPOSED 10° HIGH GROUND SIGN o = %
Y (4 TO INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY. =i WITH 150 SF OF SIGN AREA <,
" e N — — — FOR PARCEL 1 TENANT AND 24 SF L o
- A S . e DIRECTIONAL SIGN FOR FUTURE = =8
/ | . | 20—ACRE INDUSTRIAL TENANTS 2 o L
Brick B I vu ; = ‘ — ~ 1 S £83
\ Brick or Stone o 2 ’ T U”’W’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ﬂ ‘ T ’ ’ | TPROPOSED FULL MOVEMENT ACCESS — =2
| DRIVE AS RECOMMENDED BY THE [
P Metal Panel . , | [— SIDEWALK TO FUTURE CE TRAIL THE KCRC. =
—_— Meandring 3' High A Quantities and Location of Trees and Shrubs - | AND TO INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY l L SF
Landscaped Earthberm LN Shall Satisfy the Landscape Ordinance RN Proposed o PROPOSED 25° POLE SIGN
' | 15 l ‘ | e P WITH 188 SF OF SIGN AREA
. - al
Glass ——Right of Way L _ ory Re FOR PARCEL 4 TENANTS.
‘l N — ﬁ ~ —/ w/ Drive-Thru l l ‘
W | — 12 . B000SF PROPOSED CONTINUOUS Yo v
1 | = ' 12’ WIDE RIGHT-TURN LANE
{ = AS RECOMMENDED BY THE 7 N
- ] PAE OCTOBER 2023 TRAFFIC
. - . / L ] = 68 CARS IMPACT STUDY AND AS
Parking Area Easement for Existing Public Patterson Avenue [— REQUIRED BY THE KCRC.
Glass Sidewalk Widening Sidewalk and 36th Street . — = j{ﬁo . \ =
v
Per PUD Agreement 13 | — — - Y = g—
— — 7NN 1 iEParcel 44— . "
TRADITIONAL CONTEMPORARY ;3 | rcel 1 i % <>t | 50
: T —— . ’ 0 3
A — 70 [ I cC =0
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN SAMPLES GREENBELT CROSS-SECTION  ‘ | — 26 Acres —— Proposed 3,000 SF 0 SshF
55 e e 1-Story Bank w/ \ i | c o
. \ | i Drive-Thru 3 — _g %
. EXISTNG— S g l 5] L® | 2 ?
APPROXIMATE SIZE AND S ggnN_EvRng N ﬁ E— - 1 o S 8
LOCATION OF FUTURE ] [ — - =
STORM WATER POND FOR T | — 15 CARS
INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY Iy B || B o — SIDEWALK LOCATION TO PROVIDE
T — = =

w/ Drive-Thru

|
: i O) FOR PARCEL 5 TENANT.
i 147’ 1 |
| = — ) |
Play . Prc?posed 1-Story 1AV
| = Child Care Center WA <=3 ] ' I
A',rea 11,500 SF 9 ~
; |
Lf |
| ] I 24 - : \ |
o = ) 55
RERRREEE | .

Parcel 6 PROPOSED 257 FOLE SN
Gas /

@Q\/ / EXISTING WETLANDS / ==
& TYPICAL \ Pa rcel 2 32 CARS 24; [j 2 16 Acres = — W 108 S 6%52@1 R
| | @O$ 9|8 Hcﬁs I ILWS Iw 5%?}0’ — j‘: C-Store
= = 7,500 SF
" ' @ Gas E ]
\aRcel 3 37 CARS 24 J Pumps |

£ FUTURE COMMERCIAL BUILDING f
AND PARKING (20 CARS) ] 7 | ' ' ' ’ ’ ’ ' ' ' T W
3 ! CONDITIONED ON SECURING EGLE ‘ . A =
N WETLAND PERMIT | . N
X \ N | ,
| 3 |
‘ Sekk SERERAC T ; -
) N o —
147’ @

I
} / Diesel 12
| ! | v Future 1-Story Pump 18 % l ’ ’

“'\, y [} | |
178 CARS
‘ 'L(-) 12 ’

‘ TR \ / EXISTING STORM S8

1 \ 7 WATER POND N Il | 11 , J. ’ ‘ " Proposed 4,000 SF
‘ w \ TO BE EXPANDED o 5 1-Story Restaurant PROPOSED 10° HIGH GROUND

| @) H\(} éﬁg} Xy ® [ ~ __ SIGN WITH 95 SF OF SIGN AREA

|
O D

Preliminary Site Plan
Kentwood, Michigan

FOR POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL
ALONG PUBLIC ROW.

| |
| |

PROPOSED |

SITE LIGHT
TYPICAL

GRR Ancillary C-PUD

135

18

|

PROPOSED 5'—WIDE EASEMENT
Commercial / Retail oo

| 2 9,500 SF fBa RS
39°
| ﬂ o] PROPOSED GATEWAY L
| ! ] - = WELCOME SIGN.
. - ez ewm NN N NENR: ANEE(NRURNAN ~ N 2
e - - - - - S I L
- - - = - - - - - - - - - - N %E & 8 ﬁ : | 1
- - - - - - - - - - - - o= - o - -CDU? - o - o= £5 J = l DATE: ISSUED FOR:
I LN - L] - . L ] -
1 1 51 95’ R19 AR’ MINIMUM  25'x25° 09/12/2023| OWNER REVIEW
Y . I Wt - 5 CLEAR VISION CORNER
- = — 1__ 50° , * OR LARGER IF REQUIRED 10/20/2023| PLANNING COMM. REVIEW
| - - B _ _ 100 ,‘ BY THE KCRC.
B n - - - Y — - — - — _ _ - 12/05/2023| PLANNING COMM. REVIEW

SIGN WITH 114 SF OF SIGN AREA

36th Street PROPOSED 10" HIGH GROUND PROPOSED LANE TAPERS AS RECOMMENDED I \“ - = — 01/02/2024| PLANNING COMM. REVIEW

BY THE PAE OCTOBER 2023 TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
\ ( w FOR PARCELS 1, 2, & 3 TENANTS. AND AS REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF KENTWOOD.
) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) \ ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) |
BN
11 Zone
AN

Light Industrial | /
\ P.I.C. R. JAMES MORGAN

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA: Light Industrial
Existing Zoning: | - PUD Parking Requirements / Calculations: Notes: P
Existing Master Plan: C-PUD ) | . o o | | | S | - U0 y
Proposed Zoning: C-PUD Parcel No.  Parcel Area Proposed Use Required Spaces Proposed Spaces 1. Buffer anes are pr(_)wded with 20-foot minimum W|dt_h and 30.§-foot average width 5. Proposed ground signs (3), pole signs (2), directional sign (1) and gateway sign (1 W g
per Ordinance Section 19.03.C. Trees and Shrubs will be provided as required. shown on the Plan are based on Chapters 8 and 16 of the City Ordinance. Designs S E [ RUM PROJECT NUMBER )
Net Area (No ROW): 460,413 SF 10.57 Acres 1 3.26 Acres Hotel w/ 135 Rooms & 15 Employees 150 Spaces 178 Spaces will be uniform and compatible with the building architecture. Sign dimensions, heights N E
[ Paved Areas: 239 057 SF 5 49 Acres 2 1.03 Acres Child Care Center w/ 165 Kids & 12 Employees 35 Spaces 33 Spaces g 2. Site Lighting shall comply with Ordinance Chapter 20. Light fixtures and poles styles and setbacks will comply with the Ordinance and details will be provided during Final f:f . 2 3 O O 4
[ Building Areas: 62,773 SF 1.44 Acres 3 1.02 Acres 9,500 SF Reta?l 38 Spaces 36 Spaces w_iII be_ consiste_nt and uniform throughout the PUD with heights not exceedi_ng 2_5 feet. Site Plan Review. The gateway sign will be constructed during the development of o
] Open Space 158,583 SF 3.64 Acres (34%) 4. 2.04 Acres 8,000 SF Retail 31 Spaces 68 Spaces nght fixtures will have c.ut-off/non.-glare optlcs gnd LED lamps. A. photometric grid Parcel 6. E §
Req'd Open Space 138,124 SF 3.17 Acres (30%) 4. 3,000 SF Bank 15 Spaces 15 Spaces with footcandle levels will be provided during Final Site Plan Review. . . o . . . . O SHEET NAME
5 1.03 Acres 4,000 SF Restaurant (2,500 USF) 50 Spaces 34 Spaces 6. Site Amenity details, including gathering areas, benches, bike racks and plazas, will
6. 2.19 Acres 7,500 SF Gas Station & Convenience Store 38 Spaces 43 Spaces 3. Landscaping is conceptual with approximate locations and quantities of trees shown. be provided with Final Site Plans for each Parcel. North PRELIMINARY
Totals 10.57 Acres 357 Spaces 407 Spaces A Final Landscape Plan with trees and shrubs will comply with with Chapter 19 of the PUD SITE PLAN
Ordinance including location, species, and size of plant material and will be provided L o
* Proposed uses are Preliminary and may be replaced with other C-PUD permitted uses during Site Plan Review at Final PUD Approval. Buffer Zones will include a continuous landscaped earth berm . W, SHEET NUMBER
**Qverall parking quantities will comply with the City Parking Ordinance. Parking spaces in excess (if any) will be to screen parking areas - see Cross Section above. 0 60 120 180
deferred and converted into Open space. C - 1 O 3
4. Pedestrian walkways are conceptual and will be adjusted as need during Final PUD Scale of Feet
Approval. Walkways will be safe, inviting and will provide connections internally and to \ J

the existing public sidewalks.






Schweitzer 1-4-2024

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

PROJECT: Anderson Commercial Master Plan Amendment Request
APPLICATION: 25-23

LOCATION: Northeast Quadrant 52" St and Broadmoor Avenue (M-37)
PUBLIC HEARING DATE: January 9, 2024

REVIEW TYPE: Master Plan Amendment

RECOMMENDATION: Grant conditional approval of the request of Andrew Anderson, for

CONDITIONS:

BASIS:

the proposed change in the Master Plan LLand Use designation from
Industrial to Commercial for the Northeast Quadrant of 52" Street
and Broadmoor Avenue (M-37) for the properties Mr. Anderson
has under contract (5080, 5090 and 5140 Broadmoor, and 4581
521 Street) as well as the properties immediately to the south
fronting on 52™ Street (5180 Broadmoor Avenue, SE and 4561-
52" Street, SE)

1. The above-described properties shall be developed as a Commercial
Planned Unit Development (CPUD) to establish integrated shared access
consisting of no more than one City of Kentwood approved driveway onto
527 Street and no more than one Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) approved driveway onto Broadmoor Avenue. The designation to
commercial shall also provide that a comparable commercial configuration
may also be considered by the city if consistent with the purposes
identified herein (e.g., necessity of shared access, necessity of reciprocal
access, necessity of access in accordance with Michigan Department of
Transportation design and safety standards.)

2. Reciprocal access easements shall be established between all adjoining
properties within the overall described northeast quadrant.

1. Recent professional real estate research reports and The Right Place, Inc
caution that there is a relative scarcity of available industrial real estate in
the southeast portion of the Grand Rapids Metro area and particularly
Kentwood. However, the Planning Commission feels the collective 8+
acres of multiple properties in the northeast quadrant of 52" Street and
Broadmoor Avenue are better suited for planned commercial use due to its

1|Page Case #25-23 Anderson Master Plan Staff
Recommendation



relatively small size and triangular configuration. In the meantime, Gaines
Township, immediately to the south has recently rezoned 320 acres of land
in the northeast portion of their community to industrial on land

previously master planned for industrial use.

2. Several Planning and City Commissioners requested an economic
impact analysis comparing an industrial concept plan for the site with the
proposed commercial pickleball-whiffle ball restaurant concept plan. The
industrial concept plan (designed by a party who contacted The Right
Place, Inc earlier in 2023 while considering the purchase of the site
Anderson now has under contract) was similar to the development of the
multi-tenant industrial building site located in the southeast quadrant of
Broadmoor Avenue and 52™ Street. Therefore, the tenant mix within the
existing southeast quadrant building was used to gauge the tenant mix for
the analysis. The base analysis suggests that the industrial concept plan
would have greater economic impact. However, the relative proportion of
manufacturing businesses associated with the industrial concept and the
possible catalytic effects of the pickleball-whiffle ball restaurant concept
could shift the scales in favor of the commercial use.

3. The northwest quadrant of 52" Street and Broadmoor has a commercial
land use designation and has been developed as a Commercial Planned
Unit Development since 1996 when it was rezoned to provide industrial
support or service uses. This site was likewise triangular shaped under
multiple ownership interests.

4. It is important for the collective properties to be treated as an integrated
site including 5180 Broadmoor and 4561 52™ Street immediately to the
south. If the land use designation is changed to commercial, a straight C-2
zoning would not be appropriate. Therefore, the properties should be
developed as a Commercial PUD or another appropriate commercial
zoning configuration.

5. Given this location at the intersection of an arterial street and a state
trunk line, access onto Broadmoor Avenue and 52" Street for the
Anderson properties and the two properties immediately to the south
(5180 Broadmoor Avenue and 4561 52™ Street) must be integrated in
accord with Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) driveway
design and safety standards.

6. Discussion at the Master Plan Committee, Land Use and Zoning
Committee, East Beltline Advisory Board, public meeting and public
hearing.

2|Page Case #25-23 Anderson Master Plan Staff
Recommendation



Land Use and Zoning Committee
Meeting Summary
First Floor Conference Room

August 9, 2023

Present: Planning Commissioners-Bill Benoit, Ed Kape, Dan Holtrop, and Sandra Jones, Planning staff-
Lisa Golder, and Terry Schweitzer, Applicants-Andy Anderson, Denise Kolesar, and Brad Potter

The meeting started at 6:30 pm.

Mr. Anderson, the owner/developer, is proposing to construct indoor and outdoor pickleball
courts, indoor whiffle ball field, a restaurant, and a pro-shop/retail facility on the property. A
conceptual site plan/floor plan was provided in advance of the meeting to fllustrate a preliminary
layout of the property. Mr. Anderson indicated he understood that this use would require a rezone
of the property, as well as site plan approval of the project. Ms. Kolesar is his business consultant
and Mr. Potter, Newco Design Build LLC, put together the initial concept site plan and floor plan.
Mr. Anderson explained that he has been seeking a site of at least 4 acres in size, and proximate to
a highway interchange to be readily accessible to the entire metro area.

Schweitzer noted that the restaurant use would be permissible under the current I-1 Light
Industrial zoning, subject to Spectal Land Use and Site Plan review and approval by the Planning
Commission. Retail as well as indoor and outdoor recreational uses are not permitted under
the 1-1 Light Industrial zoning. In addition, the future land use designation for the northeast quadrant
of Broadmoor and 52" Street is industrial. He noted there was a request to modify the Master Plan
for the two properties right on this corner (5180 Broadmoor and 4561 52™ Street) from
industrial to retail in early 2022. The applicant for that request, Kum & Go, was seeking to
develop a gas station and convenience store, After the review of that request by the East
Beltline South Advisory Committee the applicant withdrew its request (also attached). The
Michigan Department of Transportation {MDOT) staff were very concerned with the traffic
projections and movements associated with the proposed use as well as compliance with the
MDOT access design standards.

Schweitzer noted another consideration of the prospective rezoning is the relative supply of
industrial land within the city. While the site under conslderation has been vacant for a long
time, it Is still zoned to accommodate industrial development. Schweitzer also called attention
to a recent Crains Grand Rapids Business article regarding the scarcity of available industrial real
estate in the West Michigan area. He pointed out that the city recently received a concept plan

that shows how the site could accommodate two industrial buildings of between 34,000 and
38,000 square feet in area. '

Mr. Potter explained that their conceptual site plan portrayed a driveway onto Broadmoor
Avenue and, in response to a commissioner’s inquiry, he stated it may be possible to secure
access out to 52M Street. He indicated that the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT)



Land Use and Zoning Committee
Meeting Summary
First Floor Conference Room

August 22, 2023

Present: Planning Commissioners-Bill Benoit, Ed Kape, Dan Holtrop, and Sandra Jones, Planning staff-
Lisa Golder, Joe Pung, and Terry Schweitzer, Applicants-Andy Anderson and Denise Kolesar

The meeting started at 6:30 pm.

Mr. Anderson, the owner/developer, provided the committee with an expanded update of his
pickleball and restaurant development concept for the northeast quadrant of the intersection of
52" Street and Broadmoor that was initially reviewed on August 9. The updated concept included:
an indoor wiffle ball field; expanded building footprint; and additional outside dining.

Mr. Anderson and Ms. Kolesar provided an overview of what they learned from the August 9
meeting and the compiled background on the relatively recent consideration of Athletic Training
Facilities in the industrial zone provided by Planning staff. They expressed a desire to be fully
transparent in their quest for this project.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Anderson and Ms. Kolesar expressed their intent to contact planning staff to begin the
process of introducing a change to the city’s Master Plan designation for their intended site
from the current industrial land use to commercial.

The meeting adjourned at 7:00pm.



Master Plan Committee Summary
Discussion regarding the northeast corner of 52™ and Broadmoor Avenue
Proposal: indoor and outdoor pickieball, restaurant
September 26, 2023
6:30pm

Andy Anderson and Denise Kolesar were present, as well as Master Plan Committee members Ray
Poyner and Dan Holtrop; staff members Terry Schweitzer, Lisa Golder and Joe Pung.

Discussion ensued around an amendment to the Master Plan at the northeast corner of 52™ Street and
Broadmoor from Industrial to Commercial to allow indoor/outdoor pickleball courts and a restaurant.

Ray Poyner expressed concern about preservation of the Industrial zone for industrial uses, He
questioned whether people would come from outside of Grand Rapids to play pickleball here.

Andy Anderson indicated he had looked at other commercial property in the area, including MSA, former
Family Fare at Breton and 44" Street, property at Centerpoint Mall. He wanted to stay away from 28"
Street as an option. Pickleball is a fast-growing sport. Anderson and Kolesar described their request as a
social club. They felt their project would complement the city’s pickleball courts at Covenant Park and
would be consistent with the City’s plan to embrace pickleball.

There was discussion on the nature of potential industrial development at the same location.

Anderson said that if the pickleball facility was approved, there would be 25-35 employees, who would

probably make a few dollars over minimum wage. He indicated that he would be willing to conditionally
rezone the property to allow for pickleball.

Ray Poyner indicated he was not interested in making it an allowable use in the industrial zone. Then
other indoor recreation facilities would be allowed in industrial as well,

There was discussion regarding a previous request for the allowance of indoor recreation (soccer facility)
in the industrial zone districts. The Planning Commission recommended approval, but the City
Commission denjed the application. There is provision for recreation uses in many of the zoning
districts. The Planning Commissioner’s role is to provide a perspective for the City Commissioners.

Schweitzer said that the East Beltline South Advisory Committee should review the request. In addition
to East Beltline access, 52™ Street access will be required if the pickleball facility developed.

There was discussion regarding the commercial development to the west and the developability of the
property just north of the proposed Master Plan amendment. The industrial development to the south
along Broadmoor Avenue was also discussed.

Holtrop said that excluding the corner would bother him, because the corner parcels are not big enough
to develop as industrial. Schweitzer said that he would recommend including the corner piece if the

1|Page Master Plan Committee Meeting Summary 9-26-23



master plan change is approved, and that a PUD should be considered to ensure that access
management principles are considered.

Holtrop said he would be in favor of the Master Plan Amendment if it also incorporates the corner
parcels of land.

The meeting ended at 7:00pm.

2|Page Master Plan Committee Meeting Summary 9-26-23



Fast Beltline Advisory Committee
Meeting Summary
October 19, 2023

Members Present: Peter Kimball, Grand Valley Metro Councit (GVMC) Transportation
Planner, Jason Cole, Michigan Department of Transportation {(MDOT), Kerwin Keen,
MDOT, Tim Haagsma, Kent County Road Commission (KCRC), Brian Hilbrands, Cascade

Township Planning Director, and Terry Schweitzer, Kentwood Director of Community
Development,

. Others Present: Denise Kolesar, Advisor to applicant Andrew Anderson and Chris Van
Doeselaar, Newco Design Build LLC

The meeting convened at 9;04am

[.  Introductions

Everyone introduced themselves.

iIl.  Brief hackground on this committee
Schweitzer and provided recent history and role of East Beltline Advisory Group as a
GVMC subcommittee. It provides a forum for land use and transportation officials from
the respective communities and road agencies to discuss proposed changes in land use
and/or transportation facilities in the M-37 corridor. '

.  Introduction to the proposed project
Schweitzer provided context to the proposed change to the future land use designation
on the northeast corner of 52" Street and Broadmoor from industrial to commercial
being submitted by Andrew Anderson, an entrepreneur. He noted that the Kentwood
frontage along M-37 (Broadmoor Avenue) was predominately master planned and
zoned industrial except for the 6.5-acre area on the northwest corner of 52™ Street and
M-37. He briefly reviewed the conceptual site plan for the proposed commercial
development as well as an industrial development concept plan put together by a
prospective developer back in July. He noted the industrial land use information the city
received from Tim Mroz, the Senior Vice President of Community Development with The
Right Placed. He also noted that regardless of the outcome of the land use question, the
land use designation of the northeast quadrant of 52" Street and Broadmoor Avenue
should be the same, be it the current industrial or the proposed commercial. The main
reason for this approach Is to integrate traffic access and circulation along the state
trunkline and arterial street.

IV.  Additional detail provided by applicant
Andrew Andeson’s representative, Denise Kolesar explained that her client wishes to
build a pickleball and Wiffleball restaurant on the site, an allowable use under the existing I-
1 zoning, however the recreational uses are not allowed. She noted the growing
popularity of these recreational sports and described how their concept would also
benefit the area by providing a quality restaurant to serve the surrounding industrial

1|Page East Beltline Advisory Committee 10-19-2023



workforce. The proximity of this site to M-6 was a key factor in their site selection
process since they anticipate a regional draw for their service offerings. Chris Van

Doeselaar noted that they recognized the importance of shared access onto Broadmoor and
52 Street,

Tim Haagsma noted that the traffic associated with industrial development of the site
would generally add traffic volume to the peak hours on Broadmoor and 52" Street. In
contrast, the proposed commercial development would likely add volume during off
peak times on the respective roadways. In his roles as a Planning Commissioner and
Township Trustee for Gaines Township he noted the 300-350 acres of land area master
planned and recently rezoned to industrial in the northeast portion of their community.

Brian Hillbrands indicated that the Cascade Township frontage on Broadmoor included a
gas station and two hotels, with a new apartment community just to the east.
Otherwise, the southwest portion of their community was master planned and zoned
industrial.

Kerwin Keen and Jason Cole noted that they offer no recommendations on the land use
decisions made by the local units of government. Their focus is on safe access and
traffic circulation of development along the corridor to maintain the capacity and safety
of the roadway. They are therefore supportive of one access onto 52" Street and one
onto Broadmoor shared by and between all the properties in the northeast quadrant of
the intersection. In particular, the access drive onto Broadmoor should be centered
between the two indirect turns north of the 52" Street and Broadmoor intersection.
They also noted that the boulevard design of Broadmoor will be extended south to 76t
Street in the next few years within a narrower right-of-way.

Peter Kimball indicated he had reviewed the meeting information with GVMC Director
of Transportation Planning Laurel Joseph and they were both supportive of integrating
singular access and circulation onto 52" Street and Broadmoor Avenue for all the
properties within the northeast quadrant of this intersection.

Schweitzer expressed appreciation to the meeting attendees for their participation and
input. He stated that if the master plan change is ultimately approved, staff would
recommend that it include the two properties on the corner with the condition that
development proceed as a Commercial Planned Unit Development integrating singular
access and circulation onto 52" Street and Broadmoor Avenue for all the properties.

The meeting adjourned at 9:40am

2|Page East Beltline Advisory Committee 10-19-2023






STAFF REPORT:

November 29, 2023

PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission
PREPARED BY: Lisa Golder
CASE NO.: 01-24 Storage Five Kentwood LL.C - Conditional Rezoning
GENERAL INFORMATION
APPLICANT: Chris Catania
Storage Five Development
PO Box 1942
Seabrook, TX 77586
STATUS OF
APPLICANT: Option holder
REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Rezoning of 5.87 acres of land from C-2 to I-1 Light
Industrial
EXISTING ZONING OF
SUBJECT PARCEL: C-2 Commercial
GENERAL LOCATION:  1800-1900 44™ Street SE
PARCEL SIZE: 5.87 Acres
EXISTING LAND USE
ON THE PARCEL: Vacant office space/call center
ADJACENT AREA
LAND USES:
N: 44th Street ROW
S: Residential-——Tamarisk Apartments, multifamily
E: Commercial (gas station, daycare)
W: Restaurant, office
ZONING ON ADJOINING
PARCELS:

1]Page

N-NOS Neighborhood Office Service and LDR Low Density
Residential--City of Grand Rapids

S: C-2 Commercial, R-3 Medium Density Residential, R-4 High
Density Residential

E: C-2 Commercial

W:C-2 Commercial




Compatibility with Master Plan:

The Kentwood 2020 Master Plan recommends Commercial use of this site. The applicant
requested the amendment of the Master Plan to allow for Industrial use for a 8.2 acre area to be
designated for industrial use. The City Commission declined to set a hearing date for the
Master Plan amendment; therefore the Master Plan designation remains Commercial.

Zoning and Land Use History:

The site has been zoned for commercial use since at least 1976. The property has been used as
a grocery store, bowling alley, and mall before being used as a call center. Earlier in 2023, the
applicant submitted an application for an amendment to the Master Plan that would have
allowed 8.2 acres of the property to be designated for industrial use. The City Commission
declined to set a hearing date for the Master Plan amendment; therefore, the Master Plan
designation will remain Commercial.

Project Overview:

In November of 2022, the applicant appeared before the Land Use and Zoning (LUZ) and later,
to the Master Plan Subcommittees seeking feedback on the potential for rezoning of 8.2 acres of
the overall 13.3-acre property from Commercial to Industrial. The building located on the
property is 116,057 square feet in area and has been most recently used as a medical call center.
The applicant would like to use the building for climate controlled self-storage, requiring
industrial zoning.

The applicant has indicated that the call center was refurbished prior to the pandemic and then
was never fully re-occupied since due to the popularity of work from home. The building has
been largely vacant for three years; there has been little or no interest in leasing the building.

Despite the fact that the Master Plan will not be amended to the Industrial designation, the
applicant has submitted an application for Conditional Zoning that would allow rezoning of
5.87 acres to I-1 Light Industrial, and voluntarily restricting uses to self-storage and associated
parking. The applicant has also voluntarily requested the additional conditions be apphed to the
parcel proposed for the conditional rezoning:

e Th only industrial use permitted within the portion of the site to be rezoned to the I-1
district shall be the self-storage use, and that use shall only be permitted within the
existing building footprint. The other portions of the site rezoned to the I-1 district shall
be used for ingress, egress, parking and utilities to support the self-storage use.

e All storage unit doors must be fully enclosed within the building.

e No additional buildings or structures shall be permitted within the rezoned portion of the
site.

e No additional stories (height) may be added, such that the height of the building shall
not exceed 24°.

e The developer will improve the existing self-storage building with a new fagade
substantially similar to the renderings attached hereto.



Staff Analysis:

1. The applicant is requesting Conditional Rezoning to allow the existing 116,057 square foot
building to be used as a self-storage facility. Self-storage facilities are considered industrial

warehouses in the City of Kentwood, and therefore a use permitted by right in the I-1 and I-
2 zones. ‘

3. The overall property is 13.30 acres in area; only 5.87 acres of the overall 13.30-acre property
would be conditionally rezoned to I-1 Light Industrial. The applicant intends to divide a
3.32-acre commercial parcel along the 44™ Street frontage into four new commercial outlots.
A fifth of the 4.10 acre out lot is proposed on the southeast corner of the site, also intended
to remain zoned C-2 Commercial. Since the subject parcel is a platted lot, additional
approvals for the land divisions would be required.

4. If the property is rezoned for industrial use, 77 parking spaces would be required to be
retained, or deferred parking provided. The applicant shall provide information on the
parking intended for the proposed use.

5. In accordance with Section 10.3 C 4 of the Zoning Ordinance, no industrial building or
storage can be located closer than 100 feet to a residential district or boundary. A building
may be permitted as close as 50 feet if that area between the building and the boundary is an
unlighted landscape buffer used for no other purpose. Further, no entrance other than a
required emergency door shall enter upon the area. In addition, an industrial rear yard
adjoining a residential district must comply with Chapter 19 setback and screening
provisions. Chapter 19 requires a 50’ minimum width buffer zone, with a 6-foot vertical
screen and specific required planting materials within the screening area.

The southwest corner of the existing Trinity Health call center is 34 feet from the common
property line for Tamarisk Apartments. Therefore, in order to rezone the property for
industrial use, the applicant will have to receive Zoning Board variances to resolve these
issues, or otherwise find some way to comply with the zoning regulations.

6. According to the Institute of Traffic Engineers report Trip Generation, 11™ Edition, a self-
storage facility of 116,000 square feet can generate 168 trips per day. The use can generate
10.41 trips in the AM peak hour, and 17.4 trips in the PM peak hour.

7. The City Engineer will determine how storm water management will be accommodated on
the site. This may affect the developable area of the proposed industrial area or the outlots.

8. The Planning and City Commissions should review the following in considering the merits
of the rezoning:

3|—pa_ge et e e e e




a. Consistency of the proposed rezoning with the goals, policies, and future land use
map of the Master Plan, including any sub-area or corridor studies. If conditions
have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent
development trends in the area should be considered.

The Master Plan recommends commercial use for the site. The proposed
rezoning is inconsistent with the Master Plan.

b. Compatibility of the site’s physical, geological, hydrological, and other
environmental features with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

The site’s physical, geological, hydrological and other features are compatible
with the proposed rezoning.

c. The applicant’s ability to develop the property with at least one (1) of the uses
permitted under the current zoning.

Under the current zoning, the site could still be used for any number of
commercial or office uses. The existing 116,000 square foot building may be
difficult to re-use as a call center.

d. The compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district
with the surrounding uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the
environment, density, nature of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and
potential influence on property values.

The applicant has restricted the potential uses to self-storage only. Self-storage
does not generate a large amount of traffic. However, while self-storage does
not create traffic or noise for the adjacent residential area, it also does not
provide any vitality or benefit. Information on exterior lighting, fencing, and
hours of operation have not been provided.

e. Whether the city’s infrastructure and services are sufficient to accommodate the
uses permitted in the requested district without compromising the “health safety
and welfare” of the City.

The city’s infrastructure is adequate to serve the site.

f.  Where a rezoning is reasonable given the above the guidelines, a determination that
the requested zoning district is more appropriate than another district or amending
the list of permitted or Special Land Uses within a district.

The potential for amending the C-2 district to allow for self-storage has been
discussed. However, it is unlikely that the concerns regarding self-storage at
this site would be eliminated by amending the ordinance in this way. In

4|Page









Conditional Rezoning Narrative
Storage Five Kentwood LLC

November 20, 2023

Quick Facts:

Subject property is located at: 1800-1900 44th St. SE, Kentwood, M1 49508
PPNs: 41-18-28-125-006 and 41-18-28-125-010

Total Acres: 5.87 of 13.139

Current Zoning is; C-2 Community Commercial

Proposed Conditional Zoning is: 1-1 Light industrial

Proposed Use: Self Storage - Adaptive reuse of an existing building
Additional Use: Retail/Commercial Pad Sites (C-2)

Project Description:

Storage Five Kentwood LLC {the "Developer") proposes an adaptive reuse of the existing 116,057 SF building to be converted
to a Class A, climate controlled, self-storage facility. A new and updated exterior facade "look" will be part of the conversion.

The building was originally built in 1957 and was most recently used as a call center. To allow for self-storage, as shown on
the attached site plan, the Developer is proposing a property division and a conditional rezoning, from C-2 to I-1, of the bare
minimum amount of the property necessary to contain the existing 116,057 SF building and related parking. The Developer
proposes to retain the balance of the property as C-2 and create four retail pads fronting on 44th Street (roughly 0.83-acres
each) and also retain the existing C-2 zoning in the Sautherly and Southeasterly portions of the property. This will allow the
adaptive reuse of the existing 116,057 SF building for self-storage purposes, while also reducing the prior parking
requirements for that building, thereby facilitating the creation of the new commercial outlots sized for existing market
demands to stimulate commercial development and expand the tax base within the City.

Proposed Conditions of the Rezoning:

The following conditions shall apply to the rezoned portion of the site:

e The only industrial use permitted within the portion of the site rezoned to the I-1 District shall be self-storage use,
and that use shall only be permitted within the existing building footprint. The other portions of the site rezoned to
the I-1 District shall be used for ingress, egress, parking and utilities to support the self-storage use.

e  Allstorage unit doors must be fully enclosed within the building.

e  No additional buildings or structures shall be permitted within the rezoned portion of the site.

* No additional stories (height) may be added, such that the height of the building shall not exceed 24",

e Developer will improve the existing self-storge building with a new facade substantially similar to the renderings
attached hereto.



Master Plan Compliance:

While acknowledging that designating a portion of the site for I-1 use contradicts the Future Land Use Map outlined in the
Master Plan, the proposed conditional rezoning aligns with the overall objectives of the Master Plan for several compelling
reasons.

First, the current state of the site is characterized by vacancy and unproductivity in terms of commercial use. The existing
building, initially designed for use as a call center - a use no longer feasible after Covid - carries substantial parking
requirements. Consequently, the current owner faces challenges in finding a suitable user while simultaneously being
reluctant to develop the portions of the site fronting on 44th Street for commercial purposes due to the need to retain
parking for the building until a more feasible use is identified.

By converting the building's use toself-storage, a significant reduction in parking requirements occurs. This shift enables the
creation of new commercial outlots that align with current market demands. The result is the facilitation of commercial use
in both the front and rear areas of the site, particularly the sections facing 44th Street, which are well-suited for commercial
development. This transformative approach eliminates a large, underutilized parking lot, contributing to the revitalization of
the 44th Street corridor and expanding the tax base within the City.

In essence, allowing a portion of the site to be rezoned and used for industrial purposes (self-storage) acts as a catalyst for
the improvement of commercial use in other key areas of the site. This approach not only enhances the overall functionality
of the site but also aligns with the Future Land Use Map's commercial designation. Therefore, the proposed I-1 rezoning
serves as a strategic means to facilitate the commercial use identified in the Master Plan.

Second, there are a variety of key goals and underlying objectives set forth in the Master Plan that are fostered by the
proposed conditional rezoning and self-storage use of the existing building. Chief among these is the Master Plan's goal for
sustainability within the City.

As explained in Chapter 3 of the Master Plan, entitled "Issues and Policies:

[A] sustainable community 'uses its resources to meet current needs while ensuring that adequate resources are
available for future generations. Communities that utilize sustainability practices will minimize waste, prevent
pollution, and promote efficiency in its operations.

Sustainability has become an important aspect of communities that are successful and vibrant. People want their
communities to be economically and environmentally sustainable. Sustainability will pay off in the future by
reducing waste, allowing greater reliance on renewable energy, saving money, and attracting new residents to the
community.

Master Plan, p. 32.

As noted at other points in the Master Plan, "a key aspect of sustainability is the redevelopment of vacant buildings and
under-developed sites before undertaking the development of green fields." Master Plan, p, 65. The proposed project is,
therefore, exactly the type of development that is sought by the Master Plan. By making an adaptive reuse of the existing
building instead of demolishing the building for some other structure (which, notably, would not be economically feasible in
any event) the City can reduce the consumption of raw materials and energy associated with building from scratch. This
conservation of resources aligns with the Master Plan's sustainability objectives by promoting efficient use of existing
structures. (See Master Plan, p. 49 identifying the importance of recycling for sustainability.) Additionally, reusing the
existing building reduces construction waste that would otherwise be generated during demolition and new construction.
This also aligns with sustainability goals in the Master Plan by minimizing the environmental impact associated with waste
disposal and landfill use. (See Master Plan, p. 32 noting that good "sustainability practices will minimize waste.")

As a result of the foregoing, it is clear that one of the five key goals identified in Chapter Three of the Master Plan,
sustainability, will be uniquely advanced by the proposed conditional rezoning.






P:\Projects\2023\231301\Drawings\231301.dwg, LDIV, 11/15/2023 1:09:09 PM, bbaxter

N 1/4, SEC. 28,
T6N, R11W
44TH STREET & n. une, nw 174, sec. 28 B N N B B B . . . _ - _ _
=
S
| 8 N89°36'49"E  764.26" | : | |
7
\ L I D A T Y X s ;
R T gEP e (o i i 189770 """ 7T 189.70" 189.70 Y 1§ | | !
: \ i S o SONINAN P 10" PRIVATE EASEMENT  _ ___________ ) ) - -
| O el e ! Rt ! FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES | \ '.
| [} | N - | |
| ! . PROPOSED 30° 1% - N o~ . \
‘ S WA= g - : : | | S
I o e | I % o I S 1
I| @ \: 2 o : | |- - o { ?\z\:“g‘:{\)\\y(‘; \\ || 40 ROM.
| 0" | [ o AN~
. ! 5o row PROPOSED ,-;-"—-, PROPOSED l . PROPOSED . PROPOSED 5 IRt ;
LIRS s - (o2} N\ !
| | A PARCEL 1 HE PARCEL 2 | |2 PARCEL 3 Z PARCEL & 1 8 | e | | .
0G0 3 0.84 ACRES ol 0.83 ACRES % 0.83 ACRES o : ALl O - Il '.
AA T \ o |
2 | 3 S S| & 2 | | '
< | o 1 O | o % I ||
: = =l = | | .
L|>_I | '. ' ' : | _I‘ : |
1 5 T N e 1 A S
J \ ’ ! ! | ] 121 ’ v “
8 = || N89°36'49"E  175.00 N89°36'49"E  189.70°____. | . _NB9°36'49"E 189.70' . | N89°36'49"E  189.70’ N89°36'49"E  189.70 \ | l\ = ;
-~ . e — = L L L I_ 1 f \\\\_—73:36 - !
| 55| I S | 5 | (RN
S| - T o . K < \ 52 et YA '.
Z | ?\ln [ ] I 3 (@] "l\c‘,\« QY A3 |
W2 || s8ec3eag”™w  175.00° N 7 | 3 | SN : |
. | A"
% = I: / . III | & i 72.8' \\ A :
171.5' Ll
m '. B I | ! | |
| 74 N d \(\6"‘5 oo | 3 e | ‘.
- | 7 i 7 Sl (§\CE2:.0 | X o W |
\ | || | II “\eg e@q\ \’L | Oo (/-—3’(\ F(;\‘// 0 A =X \ II |
@ | 550 ! STap” | PROPOSED 2 o Ee L : "
| y foX . ~\
~~ | | \- . PARCEL" 6 85 o \ ; -
| 9 ! /5,87 ACRES . ENNNS \ | p
'. Q o /" ZZONING TO BE 3 I . |—l>-|
| ! S| 2% o CHANGED TO -1 2 3 | : >
< .
| ICEL e g } : | |
! \C((ju’:’(\\) &g : Il o
|| W eg ! = éE | | l P‘\;‘\’\ - | ! L
' R A0 GV 0T - 3 ! | \(\e S 0 = | || L
|| \L‘Q\‘)‘\\Z\J‘j P\\: '(T:‘\\\ (_,/\) :t:l -'.‘38 I, : I ?«?\G\( \I\CX’ /0 R I || L
W T~ o N /A\l/
| ‘. RTOR,_1® e | 8% | W 6?«?‘6/'\7’ S | : ‘ <3(
I A — [ N 8 | Pl o I \
I| O =} OQ | /‘\6 @ I \ A
'. a, EXISTING | | ]
| a EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT (TYP:) . N
; - DEPARTMENT CONNECTION \ ] O
: \\ |\| ___________________ —+ || /
! - B 27 | r-——-——————""""""7 ‘
- r_}o’ PRIVATE EASEMENT ra / ! | y K N89°36'49"E  393.80° = ~——————|:—
| \IB N
| | FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES L e I N Ll?, _____ EXISTING FIRE LANE _ } . . = 28.80' S 315.00" ’T ‘,
[ bt 2 e — — = — — — — — J 3 2 | . | |
| [ e - o © !
| o 1 | S89°36'49”W  385.94' o .- - —— = — — ] '.
FA---—-—-—-—-"—"="="="="=-"=-"=—"=-"=-"=-"-- - L-———_']-——F—ﬂ —————————————————————————————————————————————————————————— 9.) ||
___':__‘_T_'T______'___‘ ——_———— ==L _ - _|| —_a ’ - ’ i
‘ ! SB9°36'49”W  337.48 |
|\ e e e e e e == a ) ‘
| ‘: N 'g] || |
I PN :’-"\:’ :.'B '3 N I|
| NN </ SN 9]
! W00 3 A PROPOSED N Lol SO !
! o AP 2 PARCEL 5 Nt |
,,\\C:J\"\ /rL,_; (== "'\6 /r)/_,
R 4.10 ACRES 2 A |
N .f‘»(A‘ ; 10 (‘g b(/\\ \ |
o s = |
Sl 2 :
3 v |
= '. |
l
|
|
########## —
- = |
a J !
-. !
- = -~ - |
T~ — - | |
4 o ’ ” ’ !
yd $87°56'49”W  125.00 |I S89°36'49"W  632.61 '.
/ o 4 - |
\ \_.J DXV t—
- o II Q2 g ST : e
,,C‘{\*‘Jr\o % \n'1|/ s ,:J\\\J PG 10" PRIVATE EASEMENT !
\A\O‘V\:/O‘)J | osz\ N (o) :\-;\ A\r,’/' FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES
A A A BN e
QA g 9% AT O
(\(') (‘\A %/ T ' I\‘A\/ lf‘rA\/ '
ZONING NOTES: GENERAL NOTES: 1800 44th St
41-18—28-125—006
EXISTg\l_(;ZZONING: PEOPS_%ED A%AF}F,{.:%EL : Tax Description:
“VINIMUM LOT AREA: 11.050 SF — C-2 ZONING THAT PART OF LOT 32 LYING WEST OF A LINE WHICH IS 347.01 FEET EAST ALONG SOUTH LINE OF 44TH
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 8’ ST FROM NE CORNER OF LOT 37 & PARALEL WITH EAST LINE OF BOWEN BLVD * KENTWOOD MALL PLAT
PROPOSED PARCEL 2
FRONT YARD SETBACK: 35’ . Az Arpre
SIDE YARD SETBACK: NONE REQUIRED WHEN ADJACENT : 8_83 ?C():Ell;:\ls(;
TO A C-2, C-3, |I-1 OR I-2 DISTRICT.
REAR YARD SETBACK: 30 PROPOSED PARCEL 3 1900 44th St
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 75% ~— 0.83 ACRES 41-18-28-125-010
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 45’ (30" WHEN ABUTTING ANY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT). — C—2 ZONING Tax Description:
PART OF LOTS 31 AND 32 COMMENCING AT NW CORNER OF LOT 24 OF SAID PLAT; THENCE S 2D 03M
W RETAlL Dep USE 75% EROPOAL PRI 2 165 E 245.26 FEET ALONG EAST LINE OF LOT 32 TO A POINT 200.08 FEET NORTH ALONG WEST LINES
' ~ 35 Sonme OF LOTS 21 & 22 FROM SW CORNER OF LOT 21; THENCE S 89D 36M 49S W 632.61 FEET TO NE
PROPOSED ZONING: CORNER OF LOT 33 OF SAID PLAT; THENCE S 87D 56M 49S W 125.0 FEET TO NW CORNER OF LOT 33;
UM LOT AREA: 40.000 SF PROPOSED_PARCEL 5 THENCE N 2D 02M 11S W 233.57 FEET TO NE CORNER OF LOT 34 OF SAID PLAT; THENCE S 89D 36M
3 .0 - 4 49S W ALONG NORTH LOT LINE 54.97 FEET TO A LINE WHICH EXTENDS SOUTH PARALLEL WITH EAST
N DT . 200 ~ -2 ZONING LINE OF BOWEN BLVD FROM A POINT WHICH IS 347.01 FEET EAST ALONG SOUTH LINE OF 44TH ST LAND DIVISION MAP
— W/ FRONT YARD BUILDING FRONT WALL < 150' :70° W/ 25’ LANDSCAPE BUFFER PROPOSED PARCEL 6 FROM NE CORNER OF LOT 37; THENCE N OD 23M 56S W ALONG SAID EXTENSION LINE 519.76 FEET TO
PARKING BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150" ;100" W/ 35’ LANDSCAPE BUFFER 5.87 ACRES
— W/0O FRONT YARD BUILDING FRONT WALL < 150’ :35 LANDSCAPED FRONT YARD I—1 ZONING
PARKING

SIDE YARD SETBACK:
REAR YARD SETBACK:
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE:
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:

MAXIMUM ACCESSORY RETAIL

BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150’

20’
40’
50%
3 STORIES (OR 45')

AREA:

:45’ LANDSCAPED FRONT YARD

5% OR 1,000 SF (WHATEVER IS GREATER)

EXISTING BUILDING SIZE: 116,371 SF

NEW PARCEL SIZE LOT COVERAGE: 45.5% COVERAGE

BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150" W/ PARKING

35" LANDSCAPED BUFFER ZONE PROPOSED

418.62 FEET TO EAST LINE OF WEST 21 FEET OF SAID LOT 31; THENCE S OD 23M 11S E ALONG SAID

EAST LINE & EAST LINE EXTENSION SOUTH 504.45 FEET;, THENCE N 89D 36M 49S E 393.62 FEET TO

SOUTH LINE OF 44TH ST /100 FEET WIDE/ THENCE N 89D 36M 49S E ALONG SOUTH LINE OF SAID ST
BEGINNING * KENTWOOD MALL PLAT

Proposed Parcel 6:

That part of Lot 32, KENTWOOD MALL PLAT, according to the plat thereof recorded in Liber 77
of Plats, Page 38, described as: BEGINNING at the NW corner of said Lot 32 (common with the
SW corner of Lot 37 of said Kentwood Mall Plat); thence N89°36°49”E 908.79 feet along the
North line of said Lot 32 and its Easterly extension; thence S00°23'11"E 359.91 feet; thence

SB9°36'49"W 337.48 feet to a West line of said Lot 32; thence N02°02'11”"W 30.01 feet along
said West to the NE corner of Lot 34; thence S89°36'49"W 385.94 feet along a South line of

Lot 32 to a SW corner of said Lot 32; thence N02°02'11”W 300.03 feet along a West line of 0 30 60’
Lot 32; thence S89°36°49”W 175.00 feet along a South line of Lot 32 to the West line of Lot

32; thence N02°02’11”W 30.01 feet along said West line to the Place of Beginning.

RE: 1800—-1900 44TH ST

FOR: STORAGE FIVE DEVELOPMENT LLC
ATTN: CHRIS CATANIA
PO BOX 1042
SEABROOK, TX 77586

PART OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T6N, R11W, CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

WORKSHEET
11/97 238

ex>QI engineering, inC.

planners - engineers - surveyors
5252 Clyde Park, S.W. ¢ Grand Rapids, Ml 49509
Phone: (616) 531-3660 www.exxelengineering.com

11/15/23
11/10/23
DATE

ADD DESCRIPTIONS BAB
REVISED PROPOSED LAND DIVISION JVD
REVISION BY

DRAWN BY: BAB
APPROVED BY: .
FILE NO.: S231301

PROJ. ENG.:
PROJ. SURV.: .
DATE: 05,/05/2023

SHEET
1 of 1




ZONING NOTES:

EXISTING ZONING:
C-2:

PROPOSED ZONING:

[—1:

WORKSHEET
11/97 238

ex>QI engineering, inC.

planners - engineers - surveyors

5252 Clyde Park, S.W. ¢ Grand Rapids, Ml 49509

Phone: (616) 531-3660 www.exxelengineering.com

N 1/4, SEC. 28,
T6N, R11W
44TH STREET & n. une, nw 174, sec. 28 N N N B B . . _ . _ _
=
e}
4
' E N89°36'49"E  764.26" . | B 2 21 |
- - -l 1 S N N L. R 1
B R g5 t7 -~ :'.__ ittt 8970 """ I 189.70° """ 77 189.70 Y L | | :
| \ ) e (e U O SONINAN P 10" PRIVATE EASEMENT  ____________ e - -
| e i 1 e ! FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES | \ |
| | [} | - | |
1 - d - | I % N \
| | 3 WDE Access. 1 oy| o 5 @ | } | | |
: s fe)) (o)} ! I
| =t EASMENT I 2 2 . o0 | .
[ e | = I | o - | | RO T \ ' | 40 ROMW.
! - 300’ ! f ™ 1 PR D ‘
. L 30 ROM 02 o PROPOSED " PROPOSED l . PROPOSED - PROPOSED I | VR0 | ;
47 ¢ N < - D Y & |
. | 00 Thee” Z PARCEL 1 . PARCEL 2 | 1< PARCEL 3 = PARCEL 4 /1 & W | | ‘
\ \ e AY A -— -— -+
\ 200 _ob b 0.84 ACRES =l 0.83 ACRES 5 0.83 ACRES = 0.83 ACRES . 1 1 |
| "D N : NN-) | I N N I I
() | g oo 1o . ) o | !
o | N gl '8 8 | | |
<t ! % | Z : rZ z | I '|
L|>_I II : : : L_ 2 l ‘|
| [ | | e e 1 AN S S |
J \ ’ ! ! | ] 1 ’ —i “
S|z |+  N89°36'49"E  175.00° N89°36'49”E  189.70' ___ ! | "L NB9°36'49”E  189.70' 7. | N89°36°49”E  189.70 NB9°36'49"E  189.70 \ B I e |
O | & I B = el | ! ' J' I}ﬂ \ WSO 4 '
: S I e - N ‘q\\J/”‘J AT |
M| 58] R D SRR L } v 5 \ _ go?;-ixf\(t“/o\“ !
OQ| b T T T T | = W < \ 5 % YUAR0 '.
Z | o M | | II ? I 3 o \’J}\\ ‘\:( Q\Y F‘lj/ |
L 8 | ey ’ Iy 8 n \ v NN Y ! |
=|z '. S89°36°49"W  175.00 L | | TaB |
I b | 2.8
®) . 7.5 w \ !
| t -
m | T [ \;‘\e\ I — \ 1
. 1 I | = _ =
| _ | \A 6 [\2] \\\_fq \ !
< | Z I NS o | 8 JEAG | ‘ '
| o PAS NN N \ |
O | i ! op .| PROPOSED 2 oS08 2 L | L
| y! | ~ [oXd ~\
~ | B \B —PARCEL 6 6 | | )
: 0 ! /5,87 ACRES SV | : Eﬁ
I o b I ZONING TO BE o | | S
| ! o| gy L CHANGED 1011 D '
! ol %3 I | ) | | | <
'| v " >N II I. | 3 | I'
<\~
| VT Zf ¥ | i | | 14
| sl = | BE | | | L
: AR5 T o0 = | ® L] | I ' LL::
s ee o | | '
| | WeoY T ™ A g il [ \ -
1 ~ (\\)r\\ /r‘)/ Y S @< | I ‘ <
| . /I\\ ] N (3] \
I| 5 % gg ! I ‘ -
| % |I n
: r.\.:rl \ |
| | RE <
| | ' Ne
-t L
sy -\ Y\ /7 / /77 7777/ NS < " X779 o°0}/"A 0 e e —
N ) 7 R RN I I I D I Iy N O S Y I I N S Sy I
N G 77 DR SR S A N g e A Y s N e ey A B el 26
- / | A, N89°36'49"E  393.80' e
I 10’ PRIVATE EASEMENT r | -\F— "T ————————
I — s - — ’
‘ | FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES B - | ) | —— =T 1500 |
11
| It "
I' II II I |_ ————————————————————————————————— (O 28
I J L= g
4+ — === - — - — 4-—2a
| |
| |
| e e e e - a
| ' R o
‘| \\‘\_\_f:) ~ ((‘\)j 2 |
<5 = To) >
I| - \c\:\‘*;\ D n < § U S
I| (j"(\\/(‘\\\q G\/\)L) R N y.r:.‘hr\n/i N
L e 0 PROPOSED TR L
Q0 o T < P
: PARCEL 5 L0 .
= - 4.10 ACRES = =
= i P
r o %
N (¢}
o N 9
% 7 @
2
|
30
############ —
32 9 -
’ 317.61° \i, 315.00’ ~ \J
g #_\ — |
o 1] ” 1]
yd S87°56'49"W  125.00' |I S89°36'49"W  632.61
/ Ny 4
y | O 7 -
\C O A Y N \/\( o AN !
g 3 g | . g:’“)ﬂ ~O° P (OARE N Sagop 10° PRIVATE EASEMENT
NSNS ) I ORI N BTG q:/xﬁl' FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES
a RV O < Y
RO PE e tSe
o N K EVA\/
.C‘VA‘/ '
GENERAL NOTES:
PROPOSED PARCEL 1
— 0.84 ACRES
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 11,050 SF — C—2 ZONING
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 85’
FRONT YARD SETBACK: 35 FROFUSED PARCEL 2
SIDE YARD SETBACK: NONE REQUIRED WHEN ADJACENT ~ oy ZoNING
TO A C—2, C—3, I-1 OR -2 DISTRICT.
REAR YARD SETBACK: 30’ PROPOSED PARCEL 3
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 75% 083 ACRES
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 45’ (30° WHEN ABUTTING ANY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT). — C—2 ZONING
MAXIMUM WAREHOUSE PROPOSED PARCEL 4
WITH RETAIL USE: 75% — 0.83 ACRES
— C—2 ZONING
PROPOSED PARCEL 5
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 40,000 SF — 410 ACRES LAND DIVISION MAP
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 200° — C—2 ZONING
FRONT YARD SETBACK:
— W/ FRONT YARD BUILDING FRONT WALL < 150’ :70° W/ 25 LANDSCAPE BUFFER PROPOSED PARCEL 6 . - TH
PARKING BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150’ ;100° W/ 35’ LANDSCAPE BUFFER — 5.87 ACRES RE: 1800-1900 44 ST
— W/0 FRONT YARD BUILDING FRONT WALL < 150’ :35’ LANDSCAPED FRONT YARD - 'E—X]S%ﬁ'\élNé?UWNG SZE: 116.571 SF FOR: STORAGE FIVE DEVELOPMENT LLC
PARKING BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150’ :45’ LANDSCAPED FRONT YARD T e e A > 45 5% COVERAGE ATTN: CHRIS CATANIA
SIDE YARD SETBACK: 20’ ~ BUILDING FRONT WALL > 150" W/ PARKING PO BOX 1042
REAR YARD SETBACK: 40’ —— 35 LANDSCAPED BUFFER ZONE PROPOSED SEABROOK, TX 77586
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 50%
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 3 STORIES (OR 45") (ND PART OF THE NW 1/4, SECTION 28, T6N, R11W, CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN
MAXIMUM ACCESSORY RETAIL AREA: 5% OR 1,000 SF (WHATEVER IS GREATER)
o 30’ slo’

11/10/23

REVISED PROPOSED LAND DIVISION

DRAWN BY: BAB

PROJ. ENG.:
APPROVED BY: .

JVD

SHEET

DATE

REVISION

PROJ. SURV.: .

BY | FILE NO.: S231301

DATE: 05,/05/2023

1 of 1

























[ETTs s\s.&SnmLH_ ST vy [ R T S T ST 09 = 1 VIS “Buuuifog Jo 8304wy} 07 Bult Jae POS AUDID 338} LO'OE K,LLZ0,ZON 83U T
LIZHS o _TMG Yol ava o nvs Fivg ENGiLaneI0 oav ]| c2/EN/i] ﬂ 307 Ja au)f JeaM S 0] 2L 107 SO AU IhoS D BUOIC 382} CO'GLL M. EP.IC.685 eavay) 2 307
& om 18 eup; a8y © Buey

DO — TS (5] e
T S » T AT M0 PO

S BLSaLBUS Do

841 1A UoLWED) ZC 107 PIPK jO JAkic AN 21 30 ININNIDIE IO POQLISER ‘ge aGod ‘Bold 4o
L4 950 0} papusoes jomiel) 194 4} of Bupe330 LYTd TIVI GUORLNGN € 397 3O 3404 30yl

OOLYU S ALY S5 00T N0 AG  AIHY TYAIR ARSIV BARIM

U U UUSTO U UOUUR TSSO VOO OOV | 73 Dy panodosyg N
VI LN LICHL ‘OOGRLIED 0 ALD) RIS 'NAL WE NOLIFS 971 AN JHL 40 1¥¥dl Loy o} Smois s WM oMoy mron
99SLL XL HOOUEY3S CS0dGNd INZ KAUME WAIEORN ST = a S o e
2y0L X08 0d L¥1d TIVA COALNIX * ONINNID3E S0ivd /& 051 < TIM LhOMd S - = SOvUS G 30
@N \@ \_w_w YINVLYD SRIHD INLLY QL 1333 ZTEC 3 S6¥ MOC 0BR N FONTHL L34 S¥'¥05 HINOS NOISNILXS NS LSY3 ® 3NN ASv3 A e T e e e = VA LNOMI [MQYIIRY] Cv? D51 < TYM LNOR ST P
OT1 LNGNGOTEATA 3AU 30VHALS od OIvS ONDIY 3 SIL WCZ 00 S 30NIML °IE 107 OIVS 30 1334 {2 LS3M 40 INM LSVE Ol 1334 Z9Bly NNGZ I~ > TIVM LNOHS DITIND VA LNGHS O/m =
A4S QIYS 0 INTTHANGS SNOTY 3 S8y WAT 06§ N JONGHL /30 GO 01/ IS HUsw 40 3NO Kinos Soey oy - ALLA J4¥IED) ST /A A% DG < Tivm L oNaaa ‘enbuva
LIFAHSHOM 1S Hl¥¥ 0061-0081 - GL 1334 BLBLS INT NOISNILXA CIYS DNOTY A S9E WCZ GO N 29N3HL S 407 40 MENNOD 3N AONd YRV TERR 02400 IOTSENNT SX /A 043 T > T INGHd ONITIND GHvA LNGHS /R -
dVA NOISIAIQ ANV IS Hliyb 40 3NM KLNOS ONOTV LSY3 L4 10°29C SI KKK LNIOD ¥ MOUd QATE N3MOE 40 3NM WML 20 - - DY Tk Ao
1SV3 MUM TTivdvd HLNOS SONGLX HOIMA 3N Y OL L334 Z6°5 INTT 107 HLYON ONOTY M S6% Ty ore_ - « o Wty A5 Rormin
W% 089 § 3ONIHL UYId VS 40 ¢ 107 JO HINEOD 3N 0L L34 26°CCZ M SLL 120 G2 N JONGKL TTRVE TSR P
00 167 40 AINHGD AN GL 1334 0°SZL A SEF MES G0 S JONIML 3L¥id GIYS 40 €F 107 40 HINHOD ez o = THNGZ o4
3N QL 1734 I9TC0 M SEv WS 068 S SONIHL CIZ 107 40 MINNOD AS WONd TZ ¥ IZ Sigl 20 e g = = g T .
SINM ISIM ONCIY KLBON L34 60°007 N0 ¥ OL %€ 407 40 3NT) LSV3 ONGTY 1331 92°$9Z 3 Sgl Ve AT O e
#S0 02 S 3INGHL 1LY1d GIYS 40 ¥z 107 40 43N¥0J MN L¥ ONIIAGHAOD 2 ONY I SLOT o Livd
uordlINey xo) INNIT 23 - {3001 TYUNDGETIN ARV DHULAZY MM ,o0) ¥ UHODH IMITRAD ARRXYS
0l0-SZi~8Z~Ri=i¥ U AR LTy ST DYWAT 161 RAMIYR
% v coo T s
UINOT =3 =~
T &3 - LCRTOY KINA G DN o ook Joc
T TV T 4 Rty
1¥1d TIV QOCMLNGX » GA18 NGWOB 40 INM LSYA HUK TIIVMYd ¥ € 107 40 MINHGD 3N MOMd 18 = FUdM 101 Ve
Hip¥ 40 3NTT HLAGS DNOWY LSV LT3 (0°Z¥C SI HOKA 3N ¥ 40 LS3H DNIK] 2€ 107 40 Luvd LYHL ez 20 = £ i v i rovwen
- Senasia oy T iRz
900-STI-aZ—ai=1v
15 vk ooal T ST

T 91 2024108 "NOT 7 (LRSI LCAEDLOMPIE Y S

1 _, zuww.
| | E% \\
i \ | S
H i 10200 Noret.ass I” 00%TL  ALOPES.IS
M /{N,. F
. -..// B
: , B3
N QES0d0¥d { B e )
3 J § 5 -0 : |

! o o S S 1

t +Z - BYST APSS.8ES ¥ T ’

1 oosis SR 8 :
\- LETAT  F.erOK.CeN _ ] - 2 P i r
O S B / !
g \ \\ |
@ : = N z
3 ! = g k)
= - o .

. 3 %77 :
1 e o = | |
z \ac\wi..n.v - B
= A e o
m . \aﬂW\hﬂ 8 ob 587 o
) Al ) Z [
= bt 7 ¢ s
, o = 7/ Z /] = / W_
X =
_ g ? N, TR I s T2
= B L [HESIE- ]
- —= T 2l 2
’ 0L08L Z.06I080N 7 Brte 3ereTdeN ~oorgal LBrSC.EN /F/ BLEEE . T.0v0.00N il
' - = | I 1 tm
! i =z = ) z : s
" ] Py g 8 N ] HERE
s B Gt 5 ) . " ] i ©
i -y SRV WO = STV LT = = STEY 480 A = i H
8ii v 130¥vd 3 £ T30dvd z g T30¥vd £ 1 130¥vd L ) H
jsis e R d3s0dodd q3sododd 03s0d0¥d . @3IS0do¥d i N H
i g g CAN- ]
A & Bl Do [t 1
sunus s v ! %
i i s 7 - | I Py m L8l M
T
T JTYSL  I.eret.mN 3 '
=
f |
Hul.ﬂul\rizuzn.xlhmm&m E*V
Wi waL

WA WAN






Ny

vam s

44TH STREET ax pc xs vo me 0

SHEET
1oft

neeiing, Inc,
SRR

i1 Dm0

Lot

[
long

WORKSHEET
19/9/23

1Y%, GTY OF EDAPOR0, KINT EIMTY, Wrkaesy
@’\e
T Gerwras —&a
ans

{Rrs s {evees peorees Ui AT i | avmres #e,

i Y

INNGAY HTAANVLS VO -

i

ATRE: CHRS CATARIA
PO BAX 1042
SEATROGK, 1X 77388
FAXT OF i N 1S SETTON 3, T,
i)

£3

st
LAND DIVISION MAP
RE: 18001000 44TH ST
FoRe m FIVE DEVELDPWENT LD

rrart

i
SCALE: 1" = 80"

™.
e

B
O
P
Yeo-a

V!
A

s
n

o 3 g g 93, B&
¥ o 5 8 P fel

2

37 6l sak Xrlyoad Mol Flalk Brarce NASSMHT SCATD freh o

Lt

LT tonext
Tan
mewiew oot
BLYD 4

2]
o
Lot
L
w
Lo7
[y
344 4
3t

STV JELTOE

T

SEET ALz

deacrbed oo BEEIE ob bha NY cavear of geid Lok 37

Lot 32, KDITM0 MALL PLAT, oecarding Lo Bhe plot Dareo! recerdad 1y

Lat
a

s jigisris

R ETEEN

Sl B

o
PROPOSED
PARCEL 5
an aoes

5ty
22
e
RS

IS Rt BN

TN
sanrd,

peirg
Zaah
Y

PROPOSED
PARCEL 2

SRR

e

20t 00E

1y
B =11

BT
=i

e e
VA 7

I

L bl Bghe By
B C B
= H ume m
T
| E Pom :
g ils & #i g3
gk JEro
m m w:mmsmm 2§ mmmm a;mw
1 gidly gl
= A il mm_ bty mwm;
T gAEno8 NaHoE Vo) Bl sl

O N P LT Al T bt



STAFF REPORT  January 4, 2024
PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission

PREPARED BY: Terry Schweitzer

CASE NO.: 2-24 Conditional Zoning Request of Andrew Anderson
GENERAL INFORMATION
APPLICANT: Andrew Anderson

2465 Cascade Springs Drive, SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49546

APPLICANT

REPRESENTATIVE: Andrew Anderson

STATUS OF

APPLICANT(S): Petitioner by way of Buy and Sell Agreement
REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Rezoning to C-2 Commercial
EXISTING ZONING OF

SUBJECT PARCEL: I-1 Light Industrial

GENERAL LOCATION:  Northeast Quadrant of 52™ Street and Broadmoor Avenue (M-37)
PARCEL SIZE: 6+ acres

EXISTING LAND USE

ON THE PARCEL: Vacant

ADJACENT AREA

LAND USE: N- Office
S- Industrial Office/Warehouse
E-Railroad Spur/Industrial Truck Terminal/Manufacturer
W- Commercial Gas Station Convenience Store/Drive Through
Restaurant

ZONING ON ADJOINING

PARCELS: All adjoining properties are zoned I-1 Light Industrial except for
CPUD to the West

Proposal Overview: :

The applicant, Andrew Anderson, has submitted a narrative dated 12/22/2023 for a conditional
commercial rezoning as well as conceptual floor and site plans to build pickleball and Wiffleball
restaurant and recreational sports courts on properties addressed 5080, 5090, 5140 Broadmoor
Avenue, SE and 4581 52™ Street, SE. The restaurant, retail sales and indoor and outdoor
recreation facilities use are allowed by right under the requested conditional commercial zoning.

1|Page Case # 2-24 Anderson Conditional Zoning Request




Compatibility with Master Plan:

The Kentwood Master Plan designation for this site is currently industrial use. However, if the
applicant’s pending master plan change is approved, the requested commercial conditional
rezoning may be consistent. Planning staff has prepared a master plan recommendation with
conditions to go from industrial to commercial use subject to the integration of 5080, 5090, 5140
Broadmoor Avenue, SE and 4581 52" Street with 5180 Broadmoor and 4561 52™ Street.
Conditions include an integrated plan incorporating shared access and reciprocal access
easements between the properties and no more than one driveway onto Broadmoor and no more
than one driveway onto 52 Street in accordance with Michigan Department of Transportation
design and safety standards.

Relevant Zoning Ordinance Sections:
Chapter 8 contains the Commercial/Office Districts. Chapter 10 contains the Industrial Districts.

Chapter 12 contains the general PUD requirements as well as the specific Commercial Planned
Unit Development (CPUD) requirements.

Streets and Traffic

Broadmoor Avenue is a state trunkline, (M-37) and across the frontage of the site it is a four-lane
boulevard within a 205-foot-wide public right-of-way. The 52™ Street frontage is a five-lane
arterial roadway within an 83-100-foot-wide public right-of-way. No direct left turns are allowed
at the intersection as well as along the Broadmoor frontage. The posted speed limit on
Broadmoor Avenue is 55 miles per hour while the posted speed limit on 52" Street is 50 miles
per hour.

The magnitude of this proposed zoning change, especially along the M-37 State Trunkline,
warrants a comprehensive review with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT).
During the master plan review process the city worked with the Grand Valley Metro Council
staff to assemble a meeting of the East Beltline Zoning Advisory Committee to review the
proposed land use change as well as discuss the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) driveway design and safety standards as it would apply to this property. It was noted
that industrial use of the site would likely increase traffic during the peak hours, while the traffic
projected for the proposed commercial uses would have little impact on peak hour traffic.

The 2020 two-way 24-hour traffic count on 52™ Street, east of Broadmoor was 9614 vehicles.
The most recent one-way 24-hour traffic count on northbound Broadmoor, north of 527 Street
was conducted in 2018. The traffic count was 11,440 vehicles, with an identical 11,440 vehicles
on southbound Broadmoor, north of 52 Street.

Regardless of the land use designation, there is a need to rely upon access control standards
relative to the intersection of a major arterial street and a state trunkline as well as safely
distancing private driveways from the boulevard median openings under MDOT jurisdiction.
We are seeking guidance from our road agency partners to ascertain what type of traffic analysis
may be desirable/necessary to factor into the project review.

2|Page Case # 2-24 Anderson Conditional Zoning-R_equest



Staff Analysis

1. Planning staff feels the land use designation for this site and the two properties
immediately to the south should continue to be consistent and if the land use designation
is changed to commercial, we initially felt the properties should be integrated through a -
Commercial Planned Unit Development (CPUD). However, the staff’s Master Plan
change recommendation does acknowledge that a comparable commercial configuration
may also be considered by the city for the northeast quadrant of 52™ Street and
Broadmoor, if consistent with the purposes of integration by way of: shared access onto
no more than one driveway onto each of the two street frontages; reciprocal access
between all properties held by Mr. Anderson and the two other properties addressed 5180
Broadmoor and 4561 527 Street; and access is integrated in accord with Michigan
Department of Transportation (MDOT) driveway design and safety standards. Staff feels

the proposed conditional rezoning is a comparable commercial configuration that meet
the described purposes.

2. Conditional rezoning requests do not normally require an accompanying site plan.
However, a site plan is desirable given the applicant’s self-imposed condition that the
entrance to the site off Broadmoor and the entrance to the site off 52°¢ Street are to be
shared use driveways to allow entry to 5180 Broadmoor and 4561 52™¢ Street. This
proposed condition will allow all interior drives to provide circulation between users.

3. The site plan review of the pickleball-Whiffle Ball-sports court-restaurant development
will be handled on the administrative level since all the uses are allowed by right under
C-2 Commercial zoning.

4. Given the posted 55 miles per hour speed limit on Broadmoor Avenue and the posted 50
mile per hour speed limit on 52 Street, the Michigan Access Management Guidebook
would call for a minimum distance of 460 feet for the first driveway north of the
intersection and likewise a minimum distance of 460 feet for the first driveway east of the

intersection. The proposed site plan will need to be modified to meet the MDOT design
and safety standards.

5. The properties addressed 5180 Broadmoor and 4561 52™ Street are not part of this
rezoning request. However, Mr. Anderson and the planning staff have been in contact
with the owners of both corner properties to discuss Mr. Anderson’s conditional zoning
request and the planning staff conditional master plan recommendation.

3|Page Case # 2-24 Anderson Conditional Zoning Request






	Agenda
	Minutes
	Case 29-23 Recommendation
	Case 29-23 PUD Memo
	Case 29-23 Site Plan
	Case 25-23 Recommnedation Memo
	Case 25-23 Recommendation
	Case 25-23 LUZ Minutes
	Case 25-23 Econ Review
	Case 1-24 Staff Report
	Case 1-24 Plans
	Sheets and Views
	LDIV


	Case 1-24 Plans 2
	Sheets and Views
	LDIV


	Case 1-24 Elevations
	Case 2-24 Staff Report
	Case 2-24 Site Plan



